Dakota 911
Board of Directors
Meeting Minutes: May 15, 2025

Members Present: Cara Schulz — Burnsville; Mike Slavik — Dakota County; Mike
Supina — Eagan; Nick Lien — Farmington; Dave Pemble — Hastings; Tony Scales — Inver
Grove Heights; John Bermel — Lakeville; John Maczko — Mendota Heights; Jeff
Weisensel — Rosemount; Lori Hansen — South St. Paul; Pat Armon — West St. Paul

Members Absent: John Bergman — Apple Valley

Alternates Present:

Others Present: Dan Wietecha — Executive Committee; David McKnight — Dakota
County; Heidi Hieserich, Brent Anderson, Jen Hildebrandt — Dakota 911; Julie Stahl —
Dakota 911 Fiscal Agent; Dain Olson — Dakota 911 Legal Counsel

1. Call to Order

Recognizing a quorum Chair Weisensel (Rosemount) called the meeting to order at

8:00 am.

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll Call
| Apple Valley John Bergman Clint Hooppaw
' X | Burnsville Cara Schulz Dan Gustafson
X | Dakota County Mike Slavik Bill Droste
X | Eagan Mike Supina Gary Hansen
X | Farmington Nick Lien Steve Wilson
X | Hastings Dave Pemble Mary Fasbender
X | Inver Grove Heights | Tony Scales John Murphy
X | Lakeville | John Bermel | Dan Wolter
' X | Mendota Heights John Maczko Stephanie Levine
' X | Rosemount Jeff Weisensel Paul Theisen
| X | South St. Paul Lori Hansen Todd Podgorski
| X | West St. Paul Pat Armon ' Doug Fromm

4. Approve Agenda

Discussion: No discussion.

Action: Motion by Weisensel (Rosemount) to approve the agenda as presented.




Motion passed.

CONSENT AGENDA
5. Consent Agenda — Board of Directors Chair
a. Approve minutes from the February 20, 2025 regular meeting.
b. Adopt and ratify January, February & March, 2025 paid claims.
c. Approve March 2025 Unaudited Financial Report.
d. Approve 2024 Audited Financial Report.
e. Received Contracts and Agreements executed between January 29 and
April 22, 2025.
Consider Monetary Limit.

~h

Discussion: No discussion.

Action: Motion by Slavik (Dakota County) to approve the consent agenda. Second by
Bermel (Lakeville).

_  Apple Valley

Ave | Burnsville

Aye | Dakota County
Aye | Eagan

Aye | Farmington
Aye | Hastings

Aye | Inver Grove Heights
Aye | Lakeville ]
' Aye | Mendota Heights

' Aye | Rosemount |
Aye | South St. Paul

Aye | West St. Paul

Motion passed.

REGULAR AGENDA
Action Items

6. 2026 Operating & Capital Budget

a. Operating & Capital Budget
Discussion:
Hieserich (Dakota 911) reviewed the 2026 operating and capital budget presentation
with members. The presentation included a recap of the budget process and detailed
summary revenues and costs for service information.



Lien (Farmington) referred to the one-time charges for an IT needs assessment and
asked if there were concerns about LOGIS. Hieserich clarified that the assessment was
not the result of a determination that Dakota 911 wanted to leave the LOGIS
consortium. Hieserich explained how Dakota 911 was one of three large PSAP
members of the LOGIS consortium, and how being a member of the consortium limited
CAD system autonomy. Hieserich further explained that Dakota 911 had complex
needs, and while being a member of the LOGIS consortium was working well, there had
been some points of frustration expressed by Dakota 911 members over the years.
Hieserich noted that CAD replacement was anticipated in 2028 and now is to the time to
evaluate if participation in the CAD consortium was still the best option for the
organization. Hieserich added that staff would also be evaluating CAD options with
within the LOGIS consortium, starting later this year. Hieserich ended, stating that staff
was on a dual path right now.

Weisensel (Rosemount) referred to staffing projections and asked if there was any data
on the breakdown of what made up employee time, for example work volume, time off.
Hieserich (Dakota 911) responded that typically industry recommendations were to
project approximately 15% of time off for PTO or training time. Hieserich advised that
the staffing projections approved and put into action in 2023 had Dakota 911 on the
right path to achieve the necessary PST staffing levels, and she didn't believe the
current staffing plan was too far off from where the staffing assessment report would
recommend. Hieserich noted that staff would be taking a deeper dive into the
assessment results and discuss them with the Board at a future meeting.

Supina (Eagan) referred to the staffing study and asked if it would include any recruiting
recommendations or guidance. Hieserich (Dakota 911) advised that the study would
include narrative on a comprehensive look at Dakota 911 recruiting efforts. Hieserich
noted that recruitment efforts were ever evolving depending on needs, opportunities and
industry information. Hieserich commented that the biggest challenge was that there
wasn’'t a career path that prepared people for work in 911. As such, new hires were
coming in very inexperienced and often struggled to understand what they were getting
into. Supina (Eagan) speculated that centers were hiring experienced staff from each
other. Hieserich (Dakota 911) confirmed that does happen occasionally but explained
that it’s also difficult for PSTs to leave one PSAP for another because of seniority and
schedule impacts. Hieserich noted that recruitment is an area where staff are always
looking to improve.

Maczko (Mendota Heights) referred to retention, stating that recruiting was important,
but retaining staff was where the significant costs came in. Maczko asked if staff
obtained data on why people were leaving. Hieserich (Dakota 911) confirmed, stating a
variety of reasons, including 24/7 expectations, familial changes, and then people using
Dakota 911 as a steppingstone to move into the police and fire disciplines. Hieserich
acknowledged the long-term employment investment associated with new hires and



stated that for almost a year of training, applicants who only planned to stay for a couple
of years may not be the best fit. Hieserich added that there were other benefits in the
police and fire disciplines including better retirement that were hard to compete with.

Armon (West St. Paul) referred Hieserich’s comments about career path and noted that
there had been conversations in previous years related to career path programs. Armon
asked if there had ever been conversations with Dakota County Technical College.
Hieserich (Dakota 911) noted that there hadn’t been any recent outreach efforts, but
there had been regional efforts in the past. Hieserich stated that many years ago
Hennepin County Tech offered a 911 program, and more recently, Anoka & Hennepin
had a program. Hieserich reported that the program only lasted a couple years due to
low enroliment. Hieserich advised that PSAPs didn't want to give up on the idea all
together and recruitment and retention strategies are a priority in the region.

Weisensel (Rosemount) referred to the staffing service level heatmap and information
shared by Hieserich about how the monthly statistical reports were based on 24/7
averages, but there were hours during the day where service was suffering. Weisensel
acknowledged that averages were misleading and the heatmap, which reflected Dakota
911 experience, displayed that there were areas in need. Hieserich (Dakota 911)
confirmed stating that 911 calls should not be ringing for 20-30 seconds. Hieserich
complimented staff efforts and how dispatchers and supervisors alike would step in and
help pick up calls when needed, but that also compromised their level of services, which
increased risk.

Bermel (Lakeville) referred to the heatmap and commented that he greatly appreciated
the visual. Bermel referred to the dark red areas and asked how the employees that
were working at this time were doing. Bermel asked if there were mechanisms in place
that supported ensuring these employees were able to get breaks. Hieserich (Dakota
911) responded that often it is difficult to ensure that staff have an opportunity to take a
breather as needed outside of their scheduled breaks. Hieserich stated that staffing
wasn't adequate at these peak periods and call takers were sometimes processing 100
calls an hour. Hieserich further explained that this works out to around 56 minutes of
talk time. Hieserich assured that industry standard statistics were being met, but the
reality was concerning, and Dakota 911 needed to be better. Hieserich assured that
along with increasing staffing, administration was considering alternative schedules.
Hieserich added that the online service request feature and artificial attendant for non-
emergency calls were expected to help significantly and may curb some of the growth
needs.

Maczko (Mendota Heights) referred to the $3,000,000 earmarked for CAD procurement
in 2028 but noted that the 2028 expenditures only reflected $1,120,500. Hieserich
(Dakota 911) clarified that the estimated CAD procurement expense was spread over a
10-year period.



Supina (Eagan) referred to the Motorola radio console replacement delayed to 2029,
and how the estimated cost went from $1,900,000 to $2,900,000 and asked when
Motorola represented that increase. Hieserich (Dakota 911) responded that she had
touched on this at a high level in previous meetings, and that the actual increase
estimate was received late 2024. Hieserich (Dakota 911) noted that because Motorola
reported that they would support the current consoles through 2030, and with this
significant increase, staff delayed the console replacement project to 2029 to grow the
funding.

Weisensel (Rosemount) referred to Hieserich’s report that there had been no member
contributions to the capital fund from 2020 — 2024 and commented that the believe was
that the county would be increasing its contributions. Slavik (Dakota County) clarified
that Dakota County never agreed to that. Hieserich (Dakota 911) commented that she
would not recommend pausing contributions as it makes things difficult in future years.

Maczko (Mendota Heights) commented that he would like to see Dakota County cover
an increased amount of the fixed costs.

Slavik (Dakota County) commented that about 5-6 years prior, congress implemented
congressional directed spending. Slavik speculated that while the federal government
was making cuts, public safety would likely still be something that would benefit from
congressional directed spending. Slavik suggested keeping this opportunity in mind for
future strategic planning consideration. Slavik continued, suggesting the timing may be
in line with the planned studies. Hieserich (Dakota 911) thanked Director Slavik for the
suggestions and assured that this, and other opportunities like grant funding, were on
Dakota 911's radar. Hieserich added that staff and the Dakota County Emergency
Manager were working closely to identify potential opportunities. Hieserich encouraged
members to keep her in mind if they became aware of any grant opportunities that
Dakota 911 staff might be able to pursue.

Armon (West St. Paul) referred to member fees and expressed concern about the
continuing increases. Armon clarified that West St. Paul did not have concerns about
the quality of service, or even the budget, but how the member fees were arrived at.
Hieserich (Dakota 911) acknowledged West St. Paul's concerns related to the funding
formula and stated that while she didn’t see where cuts could be made, she did think
that the consortium was working to catch up. Recognizing there were new board
members present, Hieserich (Dakota 911) referred to the funding formula and recapped
that it was calculated based on a 3-year average of CAD activity. Hieserich continued
stating that the result was the budget allocation percentage. Armon (West St. Paul)
acknowledged that West St. Paul was a heavy contributor but noted that the fees were
increasingly concerning.



Weisensel (Rosemount) referred to Empire and asked if they were still under Dakota
County. Slavik (Dakota County) responded that Empire, a city of under 5,000 people,
contracted with the sheriff for services. Weisensel (Rosemount) then asked about
Miesville and Hampton-Randolph, to which Slavik responded they were fire service
only.

Lien (Farmington) referred to the CAD calls that counted toward member fees and
asked if that included medical calls. Hieserich (Dakota 911) confirmed, stating those
calls were part of the fire/EMS category. Hieserich reminded members that there were
several call types that are considered non-billable, and that the member fees were only
calculated on billable call types. Lien (Farmington) commented that Farmington was
currently administering an exercise that had identified how 60% of their calls were
medicals, and Farmington was wondering if it was doing itself a dis-service by having
fire and EMS joint operations.

Slavik (Dakota County) recapped how the Dakota 911 consortium had arrived at the
funding formula after many years of experience and a couple other attempts that
included formulas based on one year of experience, calls, population, etc. Slavik
continued stating that after reforming that to a 3-year average, there were concerns
about skewing of CAD calls. Slavik reiterated that the consortium had come a long way
since 2007, trimming what could be trimmed to arrive at the current efficient formula.
Hieserich (Dakota 911) commented that she was confident that a small PSAP could not
be run for under $2,000,000 without sacrificing quality of service. Hieserich added that
there may be value in administering a study that validated member investment into the
Dakota 911 consolidated PSAP.

Supina (Eagan) referred to the fund balance and commented that it appeared as though
the target was to maintain a fund balance between 8 and 14%. Supina commented that
if the proposed 2026 budget were approved, the fund balance would likely be at the
high end of that target. Supina then recognized that in 2023 and 2024, the operating
budget was drawing from the fund balance to the tune of approximately 776,000 total
and asked if that continued draw on the fund balance was concerning. Hieserich
(Dakota 911) responded that she was not concerned and that the goal was to remain in
that 8 to 14% range but continued monitoring and contributions to the fund balance
were part of long-term projections. Hieserich added that while there is an occasional
dip, typically due to one-time expenses, she was not concerned.

Weisensel (Rosemount) referred to the capital budget, specifically the extended
projections, and commented that he appreciated the vision and it helped explain the
reserves.

Maczko (Mendota Heights) commented that he was very impressed with the budget
process and the forecasting. Maczko added that having ups and downs was hard to



budget for and cover. Maczko continued, stating that this was way more palatable for
Mendota Heights as a city.

Bermel (Lakeville) agreed with Maczko and complimented staff and the workgroup
saying the projections included in the budget displayed strong fiscal responsibility.
Bermel continued, stating that there were human and tech implications that couldn’t be
controlled, and as the consortium considered the financial aspect of the budget, it was
important to remember the people on the other side of the wall who were providing the

service, and directly impacted.

Weisensel (Rosemount) referred to 2023 when Director Hieserich joined Dakota 911
and recommended increases to make Dakota 911 employment more competitive.
Weisensel suggested that a good follow-up might be to provide an update showing
where current telecommunicator salaries fell in relation to neighboring PSAPs. Hieserich
(Dakota 911) advised that information would be part of the presentation in the fall, after
finalizing analysis of the staffing and compensation study report.

Weisensel (Rosemount) informed members that while Apple Valley representation was
unable to attend, and would not be voting as a result, they did express their support for
the proposed budget.

Action: Motion by Bermel (Lakeville) approve resolution 2025-006 adopting the 2026
Operating & Capital Budget as proposed. Second by Supina (Eagan).

Vote ‘ Ayes Nos
Apple Valley | 0.00%| 0.00%
Burnsville Aye 12.80% 0.00%
Dakota County | Aye 17.35% | 0.00%
Eagan Aye | 13.70% | 0.00%
Farmington Aye 3.24% 0.00%
Hastings Aye 5.45% 0.00% |
Inver Grove Heights | Aye 8.70% 0.00%
Lakeville Aye 10.37% 0.00%
Mendota Heights Aye 2.52% 0.00%
Rosemount Aye 4.39% 0.00%
South St. Paul Aye 5.67% 0.00%
West St. Paul Aye 6.83% 0.00%
Total 91.02% 0.00%

Motion passed.

b. Fixed Costs Contribution Update



Discussion:

Hieserich (Dakota 911) commented that while there may not be much discussion, she
wanted to take a moment to update new members on the status of Dakota County
contributions to Dakota 911 fixed costs. Hieserich recapped how a workgroup convened
in early 2024 to consider Dakota County increasing its contribution to Dakota 911 fixed
costs. Hieserich continued stating that the group developed and presented some
possible options for consideration by Dakota County. Hieserich noted how, at the time,
the response from Dakota County was to defer the conversation until the County could
administer a city/county cost share study. The intent of the study was to evaluate all the
city/county joint funding efforts and arrive at a wholistic report that could then be
compared with neighboring counties. Hieserich noted that Dakota County anticipated to
have a response to the Dakota 911 consortium in May 2025. Hieserich reported that
recently, the county came back stating it was unable to increase contributions to Dakota
911 fixed costs. Hieserich then deferred to Commissioner Slavik for added context.

Slavik (Dakota County) complimented Hieserich for her summary. Slavik commented
that the cost share study results didn't really surprise anyone. Slavik noted that Dakota
County paid substantially more than peer counties for many city/county joint efforts.
However, Dakota County paid less for some city/county joint efforts like Dakota 911.
Slavik noted that the conversation hasn'’t fallen completely off the table, but with the new
federal administration and other momentum shifts, Dakota County wasn’t comfortable
with increasing its contributions. Slavik noted that worst case scenario, there was risk of
the federal government shifting $28,000,000 in costs to cities, while that risk increased
to $313,000,000 in costs to counties. Slavik expressed how this unrest was “cause for
pause” but did not mean conversations couldn’'t be reopened down the road. Slavik
cited how the county was looking at a 24% levy, even with an anticipated hiring freeze
that would leave numerous jobs unfilled. Slavik recapped institutional history explaining
that the consortium had come a long way in the past 6 years. Slavik closed, stating that
Hieserich did an amazing job with her presentations and tour for Dakota County
governance, and that effort resulted in a 180 degree turn that acknowledged how well-
run the organization was. Slavik (Dakota County) noted that he would be heading to the
Capital momentarily to join other commissioners as they express their concerns related
to the possible shift in costs. Slavik encouraged members to also represent their
concerns.

Armon (West St. Paul) thanked Slavik and all commissioners for spreading that
message.

Hansen (South St. Paul) commented that the information provided by Slavik made good
sense, and South St. Paul was undergoing similar impact considerations. Hansen
acknowledged the unfortunate circumstances related to the congressional “waiting
game”.



Maczko (Mendota Heights) also thanked Slavik for the great explanation.

7. 911 Public Messaging Communications Plan

Discussion:

Hieserich (Dakota 911) recapped efforts to change the consortium message of “911 for
all’, to promoting non-emergency options. Hieserich referred to the draft public
messaging communication plan in the packet, which was created in partnership with the
Eagan communications team. Hieserich noted that the plan included public education,
social media posts, varying material and 3-4 videos, all which would be compiled into a
toolkit for use by Dakota 911 and member agencies to spread the word starting mid-

summer.

Bermel (Lakeville) commented that he loved the plan. Bermel referred to online
reporting and asked if that could be incorporated into the plan. Hieserich (Dakota 911)
confirmed stating that online reporting would be emphasized in the content.

Armon (West St. Paul) referred to Townsquare TV, which served four of the member
agencies at the table and suggested they might be interested in doing a piece also.
Hieserich (Dakota 911) noted that while the main plan was working with Eagan TV to
create the content, she would be open to also pushing the message with Townsquare
TV. Armon (West St. Paul) then suggested creation of cards that could be handed out
by governance members who participated in festivals and parades. Hieserich (Dakota
911) assured that the toolkit would include digital files that could be used by member
agencies as each saw fit.

Weisensel (Rosemount) referred to texting 911 and commented that it didn't seem
obvious how to do that. Hieserich (Dakota 911) explained that you enter 911 in the
phone number, and the message in the body of the text. Hieserich advised that
guidance would be clearly represented.

Maczko (Mendota Heights) referred to texting 911 and asked if there were any concerns
related to that. Hieserich (Dakota 911) noted that the original message, “call if you can,
text if you can't’, was pushed heavily by the State of MN prior to activation in 2016.
Hieserich stated that there hadn’t been any issue with it yet.

Hieserich (Dakota 911) informed members that the videos would be related to
when/how to call 911, what happens when you call 911, and finally, here are some non-
emergency options.

Pemble (Hastings) asked if there was any way to create the video content so it could be
shared with the school districts for educating kids. Hieserich (Dakota 911) advised that



the proposed plan included messaging content schools could use, and that she really
liked the idea as a future or ongoing video option.

Action: Motion by Hansen (South St. Paul) to approve the Public Messaging
Communications Plan as presented. Second by Supina (Eagan).

Apple Valley f

Aye

Burnsville

Aye

| Dakota County

Aye

Eagan

Aye

Farmington

Aye

Hastings

Aye

Inver Grove Heights

Aye

Lakeville

Aye

Mendota Heights

Aye

Rosemount

Aye

South St. Paul

Aye | West St. Paul

Motion passed.
Information Updates/Discussion Items

8. 2025 Goals and Objectives Update

Discussion:

Hieserich (Dakota 911) referred to the approved 2025 Goals and Objectives narrative
included in the agenda packet stating that she was going to provide brief status updates
on a few key objectives.

Goal 2 — Improve operational efficiency and emergency response.

2a.

2b.

Improve emergency data processing for PSTs.

Hieserich informed members that live transcription, and translation should
be implemented by mid-end June, and she anticipated it would be a
game-changer.

Improve the efficiency of non-emergency triage and administrative call
processing.

Hieserich commented that staff would begin to experiment with virtual
assistant capabilities on the non-emergency lines in the summer.
Hieserich anticipated this, too, would have a huge impact on call volume
depending on level of implementation.

Goal 3 — Make Dakota 911 a great place to work.

3a.

3b.

Attract and retain the best

Hieserich reiterated that the staffing and compensation study were in
progress.

Promote staff engagement and career development



Hieserich noted that the employee engagement survey was done and
would be reported on in her director’s report.
Goal 4 — Ensure Dakota 911’s ability to maintain continuity of critical services.

4a.  Strengthen Dakota 911’s cybersecurity posture to protect critical systems
and data.
Hieserich informed members that the risk assessment and 24/7 systems
monitoring along with developing key security policies has kicked off and
is making good progress.

4b.  Strengthen Dakota 911’s Continuity of Operations Plan
Hieserich reported that Dakota 911 had been testing with Ramsey, testing
the COOP back and forth to solidify a backup plan. Hieserich informed
members that Ramsey had to transfer calls to Dakota 911 the previous
week for an hour when their network went down and while it required all
available hands-on deck to support activity, it was nice to be able to return

the favor.
Goal 5 — Ensure the highest standards of service are maintained.
5b.  Improve tools & processes that provide timely quality performance
feedback.
Hieserich reported that artificial intelligence and analytics tools are already
in progress.

Action: No action. Update only.

9. Executive Director Report
Discussion:
Staffing — Hieserich (Dakota 911) reported that Dakota 911 was at a gross staffing level
of 49 full-time PSTs, averaging 53. Hieserich noted that with three in training, the net
staffing level was 46. Hieserich added that there were 5 part-time PSTs who were
working at the equivalent of 1.5 PST.
Staffing and Compensation Study — Hieserich (Dakota 911) commented that this study
was expected to wrap up early June, and a report would be provided at the fall meeting.
Employee Engagement — Hieserich (Dakota 911) reminded members that staff used the
Gallup Q12 survey to administer the 2025 employee engagement survey. Hieserich
recapped 66% participation:
Two highest scoring items:

¢ | have the opportunity to do my best

e | have a best friend at work
Two lowest scoring items:

¢ Recognition

¢ Somebody at work cares about me
Hieserich noted that the action plan put into place as the result of this survey focuses
heavily on supervisor/employee connection and recognition.



Weisensel (Rosemount) commented that 66% participation was a bit disappointing.
Hieserich (Dakota 911) agreed, stating that staff was brainstorming how to improve
response in 2026.

Public Surveys — Hieserich (Dakota 911) reminded members that two different public
surveys launched a couple weeks prior. Hieserich referred to the Online Service
Request experience survey and stated that there had been a 23% response rate with
100% satisfaction. Hieserich referred to the Caller experience survey and reported a 41-
45% response rate with 97% satisfaction. Hieserich noted that while this survey was
first met with skepticism by staff, employees really enjoyed receiving positive feedback.
Hieserich referred to negative feedback and noted that it would be monitored for any
possible patterns.

Industry Updates
2025 Regional Strategic Planning Priorities/Needs — Hieserich (Dakota 911)
commented that now that the MESB director position had been filled, metro areas
PSAPS were anxious to work toward partnerships and support on the following
priorities:

o CAD interoperability

o PSAP staffing and operational studies

¢ Cooperative purchasing opportunities

¢ Dispatch console replacement effort

¢ COOP

Maczko (Mendota Heights) referred to Continuity of Operations (COOP) and asked if
the plan includes sending staffing to the backup location to handle calls and traffic.
Hieserich (Dakota 911) confirmed that was part of the planning that Dakota 911 was
working with Ramsey to capture in the Dakota 911/Ramsey back-up plan. Hieserich
noted that it is a strong partnership with Ramsey as both centers use the same CAD
and telephone systems.

School Mapping Update — Hieserich (Dakota 911) reminded members that the state
was working on an initiative to fund $7,000,000 in indoor mapping of schools. Hieserich
noted that this collaborative effort is anticipated to be completed in 2026.

Lien (Farmington) referred to the monthly statistics and asked if staff had visibility at the
statistical level that would allow breaking out of agency calls by location. Lien clarified
that he would be interested in seeing that data for the township services Farmington
provides. Hieserich (Dakota 911) noted that she would need to get more information
and do some investigating but would follow-up with Lien via a phone call once she knew
more.

Action: No action. Update only.



OTHER BUSINESS

ADJOURN
Action: Motion by Weisensel (Rosemount) to adjourn. Second by Pemble (Hastings).

Motion passed. Meeting adjourned at 9:36am

Next Regular Meeting:
September 18, 2025
8:00am
Dakota 911Training Room
2860 160" Street W, Rosemount, MN 55068

@A/EM A/\1& ] 2035

Je?v{ D. Weigensel, Board of Directors Chair 09/18/2025

g 4, .
' /»,//////(;’/ /18] a0an

&

Hei/d(ﬂeéerjﬂl{; Executive Director 09/18/2025
/




